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Michael B. Cooke, C.PA., PC.

Certificd Public Accountants

G Colony Park
2001 South Main Street
Blacksburg, Virginia 24060
(40 953-1152
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Christiansburg, Virginia

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermnmmental
activities, business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of
Christiansburg, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as lisied in the table of
contents. These f{inancial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Chrisiiansburg’'s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, and Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporling
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemenis. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Christiansburg as
of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
“thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 18, 2011, on our consideration of the Town of Chrisiiansburg's
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our lesting of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the managements discussion and analysis and Virginia Retirement System -
Schedule of Funding Progress, on pages 4 through 10, and 36, respectively, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 1o be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
iimited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
2



responses (0 our nquiries, the basic financial statemenis, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic {inancial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 1o express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that colleciively comprise the Town of Christiansburg's basic financial
statements as a whole. The Supplementary Information included in Schedules |
through 6, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part oi the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additicnal procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlyving accountuing and other records used to prepare lhe
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Amenca. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The Supplementary
Information has nol been subjected o the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it

Muihsek B. Croke, CPA, PC

November 18, 2011



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The following discussion and analysis of the Town of Christiansburg's financial
performance provides an overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, It should be read in conjunction with the Town's basic
financial statements,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The Town's (otal net assets increased by $5,008,219 during the fiscal year,
on the government-wide basis. The Towns total net assets, on the
government-wide basis, iotaled $149,546.252 at June 30, 201ll. Of this
amount, $12,668,926 may be used to meet ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors, $130,691,835 is invested in capitai assets, net of related debt,
$350,215 is restricted for perpetual care in the Cemelery Fund; $5,826,276 1S
restricted for other purposes.

* On a government-wide basis {or governmental activities, the Town had
expenses (including transfers) net of program revenues of 517,250,415, which
totaled $5.921,783 less than the general revenues, of $23,172,198.

» Al June 30, 2011 the Town's governmental funds balance sheet reported 1otal
ending fund balances of $17,831,212 of which $359.214 was nonspendable
as a pait of the cemetery perpetual care fund, $2.455,423 was restricted by
law or donor restrictions; 52,199,995 was assigned 1o specifics savings {or
future needs of the Town and $12,816,580 was unassigned and available to
meet future needs.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our discussion and analysis is intended 10 serve as an introduction 10 the Town's
basic financial statements. The Town's financial statements present two types of
statements, each wilh a different snapshot of the Town's finances. The focus is on
both the Town as a whole (government-wide) and the fund financial statemenis.
The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-ierm
information about the Town's overall financial status. The fund financials focus on
the individual parts of the Town government, reporting the Town's operations in
more detail than the government-wide stalements, which present a longer-lerm
view. Presentation of both perspectives provides the user a hroader overview,
enhances the basis for comparisons, and betier reflects the Town's accountability.

Governmeni-wWide Financial Statements

The government-wide {inancial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and
the Staiement of Activities. These statements provide information about the Town
as a whole using the accrual basis of accounting, which is the method used by
most privaie-sector enterprises.  All current year revenues and expenses are
reported in the Statement of Activities regardiess of when cash is received or paid.
These statements allow readers 10 answer the question, "Is the Town's financial
position, as a whole, betier or worse as a result of the year's activities?”

One of the main goals of these two statements is 10 report the Town's net assels
and changes that affecied net assets during the fiscal year. The change in the
Town's net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way (o
measure the Town's financial health, or financial position. Increases or decreases
in net assets are indicators of whether the Town's financial health is improving or
deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Town's property
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

tax base and ihe condition of the Town's infrastructure should also be considered
in assessing the overall financial healith of the Town.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the Town's fund-
based activity is classified as follows:

Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here,
ncluding general government, public safety, public works, health and welfare,
parks and recreanon, cemetery and community development.  Property taxes,
other local taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activities,

Business-iype activities — The Town's water and sewer operations are reported
here as the Town charges a fee 10 cusiomers designed 10 cover all or most of the
cost of the services it provides.

Fund Financial Statemenis

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial
statement presentation more familiar. The fund financial statements focus on the
Town's most significant funds rather than fund (ypes. The fund financial
statements begin on pagde 13 and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds, not the Town as a whole. The Town has two types of funds:

Governmerntal funds - Most of the Town's basic services are included in
governmental funds. Fund-based statements for these funds focus on how
resources tlow into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for future spending. These funds are reported on the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and other liquid assets that can
readily be converted 1o cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-ierm overview that helps the reader determine the f{inancial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance ithe Town's programs. The differences
between governmental activities as reporied in the government-wide and fund
financial statements are reconciled in Exhibits D and F on pages 14 and 16.

The Cemetery Fund (Permanent Fund) is a nonmajor Governmental Fund. The
Town as of April 1, 2008 took over control of the Town's cemetery.

The Special Revenue Fund is used in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted by contract or donor to expenditure for a specified purpose.

Proprietary funds - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides,
whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town, these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-
wide statements, utilize the accrual basis of accounting, and their statements
provide both short and long-term financial information.

The Town's enterprise fund, one type of proprietary fund, is the same as the
government-wide business-ype acuvities; however, the fund financial staternenis
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The Town's
enterprise fund is the water and Sewer Fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

ASs noted earlier, nel assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government's financial position. In the case of the Town of Christiansburg, assets
exceeded liabilities by $149,546,252 at the close of the most recent fiscal year,



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

By far the largesi poriion of the Town of Christiansiurg's net assets (86 percent)
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings and structures, and
equipment); less any related debt used 1o acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The Town of Christiansburg uses these capital assets (0 provide
services to citizens; conseguently, ihese assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Town of Christiansburg's investment in ils capital asselts is
reported nel of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
Ihis debt must be provided from other sources. since the capital assets themselves
cannot e used to liquidate the liabilities.

Summary of Net Assets:
The following table presents a condensed sunimary of net assets:

Summary of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and other assets L) 21,715 § 19,130 § 939 § 1,080 S 22,654 § 20210
Capirtal assets, net 111,857 110,503 38,828 39,349 150,685 149,852
Total Assets 133,572 129,633 39,767 40,429 173,339 170,062
Other liabilities 1,981 3,516 783 800 2,764 4,316
Long-term liabilities 13,569 14,016 7,461 8,106 21,030 22,122
Total Liabilities 15,550 17,532 8,244 8,906 23,794 26,438
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 99,222 97.269 31,470 31,180 130,692 128,449
Restricied 6,185 290 - - 6,185 290
Unrestricied 12,615 14,542 53 343 12,668 14,885
Total Net Assets § 118,022 s 112,101 § 31,523 § 31,523 § 149,545 § 143,624

The Town's combined net assets increased from $143.624,469 (0 $140,546.252 as
a resull of the increase in net assets of both Business-type activities of $0 and the
Governmental activities of $5,921,783. Unrestricted net assets, the portion of net
assets that can be used to finance the day-to-day operations of the Town totaled
512.668,926. Invested in capital assets, represents the amount of capital assets
owned by the Town, including infrastructure, net of any outstanding debt. Net
assets are reporied as restricted when constrainis on assel use are externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, regulators, or are imposed by law
through constitutional provisions.  The total amount of restricted net assets is
56,185,490, $359,215 is restricied for the use of perpetual care in the Cemetery
Fund and $5,826,276 is restricted by law, contract or donor restrictions or has been
assigned for specific use.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(CONTINUED)

Summary of Changes in Net Assets:

The following table shows the revenues and expenses of the government:

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and coniributions
Capita!l grants and contributions
General Revenues;
Property taxes
Local portion of state sales taxes
Business and professional
occupational license taxes
Utility taxes
Prepared food and beverage taxes
Commonwealth share-personal
property taxes
Cigarette tax
E-911 and communication taxes
Transient room taxes
Other taxes
Permits, Fees and Licenses
Interest and Investment Income
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Cemetery
Payments from Other Governments-
State and Federal
Total Revenues
Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Water
Total Expenses
Capital contributions
Insurance recoveries
Transfers
Special item
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning
Net Assets, Ending

Summary of Changes in Net Assets

(In Thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
2207 § 1397 § 585 § 5933 % 3,063 % 7,330
307 428 - - 307 428
1,326 303 - - 1,326 803
3,016 2,990 - - 3,016 2,990
1,547 1,483 - - 1,547 1,483
1,895 1,962 - - 1,895 1,962
519 554 - - 519 554
5,408 4,504 - - 5.408 4,504
229 229 - - 229 229
722 743 - - 722 743
980 958 - - 980 958
812 749 - - 812 749
1,229 1,099 - - 1,229 1,099
131 204 - - 131 204
254 264 - - 254 264
95 119 - - 95 119
582 329 138 129 720 458
103 96 - - 103 96
3,434 3,186 - - 3,434 3,186
24,796 22,097 5,994 6,062 30,790 28,159
2,377 2,205 - - 2,377 2,205
7,298 8,022 - - 7.298 8,022
5,154 6,314 - - 5,154 6,314
3 3 - - 3 3
4,138 2,620 - = 4,138 2,620
1,146 1,393 - - 1,146 1,393
575 60 - - 575 60
- - 6,370 6,188 6,370 6,188
20,691 20,617 6,370 6,188 27,061 26,805
1,257 788 53 75 1,257 863
49 84 - - 49 84
(323) {707) 323 707 - -
910 - - - 910 -
5,998 1,645 - 656 5,998 2,301
112,101 110,456 31,523 30,867 143,624 141,323
§ 113,090 § 112,101 § 31,523 § 31,523 § 149,622 § 143,624




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

The property tax classification, which comprises approximately 12% of toial
revenue generated by governmental activities, includes real estate tax, the local
portion of personal property tax, machinery & iools tax and public service
corporation taxes. Real eslate iax revenue, totaled $2.180.540.

Saies taxes, consumers utlity laxes, Commonwealth share of personal properny
taxes, business and professional occupational license taxes. prepared food and
beverage taxes, transient room taxes, E-Ql1 taxes, and cigarette taxes comprised
the majority of other local taxes collected by the Town. Other taxes comprised
approximately 49% of total revenues generated for governmental activities and are
the largest source of revenue for the Town,

Payments from other Governmenis ~ State and Federal comprised approximately
13% of governmental activities revenues. Street maintenance funds, and funding
recerved under House Bill 599 for law enforcement are some of the major sources
of revenue included in this category.

Charges for services include items such as recreational fees and garbage coliection
fees represent approximaiely 8% of the governmental activities revenues.

Fublic Safety expenses comprised approximately 35% of expenses of the
governmental actvities. Operations of the labor-intensive Police Deparntment are
included n this category, along with expenses of the Building Inspections, Rescue
Squad, Fire Department and E-911 Call Center.

Public works expenses comprised approximately 24% of governmental activities
expenses. Expenses for Sohd wasie Management, Building Maintenance, Streel
Paving, and Street Maintenance are included in the Public works category.

Recreation expenses comprised approximately 20% of government activiiies
expenses.

An additional $323,096 in cash was transferred from the General Fund to the
Water/Sewer Fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Community Development and Health & wWelfare include such items as industrial
development, planning district commission, planning, and engineering services.

There was no change in the net assets of business-type activities,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the governmental funds reflect a total fund
balance of $t7,831,212. Of this amount $12,816,580 constitutes unassigned fund
balance, which 1s available for spending for services debt obligations and future
capital projects, As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useiul 10
compare unassigned fund balance to toial fund expenditures.

The General Fund balance increased by $2,032,290 during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2011 primarily due to capital projects that were not completed during the
fiscal year that will be completed in the next fiscal year.

Local taxes generated the majority of General Fund revenue, totaling approximately
$16,249.621 in fiscal year ending June 30, 20i1.

Intergovernmental revenue is the second largest source of General Fund revenues,
generating approximately $3,648,735 in fiscal year ending June 30, 20l1l. The
majority of this revenue is received from the Commonwealth and includes
reimbursement for law enforcement funding received under House Bill 599, and
street maintenance funds.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund revenues exceeded the budgeted revenues by $821,320 due (0
slightly higher collections in a number of categories than anticipated.

General Fund expenditures were less than the budgeted amount by $1,988,565 {or
general operations. Actual expenses for ail departiments were reduced due 10 hiring
freezes and constrainis on spending with the slowing recovery but were primarily
from capital projects not compleled durng the period and rolled into the next fiscal
year budgeis,

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2011, the Town's capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities amounted i0 $150,685,528 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment includes land, streets and highways, construction in progress, land
improvements, buildings and structures, vehicles, eguipment, infrastructure and
bond issue costs. The total net increase (additions less retirements and
depreciation) in the Town's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
was $833.080.

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

June 30,2011 June 30,2010 June 30,2011  June 30,2010  June 30,2011  June 30,2010
Land i 2,664 % 2,144  § 12 3 12 8 2676 % 2,156
Construction in Progress 414 21,413 - - 414 21,413
Streets & Highways 76,370 75,112 - - 76,370 75,112
Land Improvements 1,863 648 - - 1,863 648
Buildings & Structures 25,953 6,696 19,167 19.897 45,120 26,593
Equipment 2,731 2,555 19,649 19,440 22,380 21,995
Vehicles 569 686 - - 569 686
Infrastructure [,155 1,105 - - 1,155 1,105
Bond Issue Cost 138 144 - - 138 144
Total b 111.658 3§ 110,503 § 38828 % 39,349 3 150,685 % 149852

The changes in each category of Capital Assets are presenied in detail in note 7 10
the Basic Financial Statements.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

s  Consiruchon in Progress — Major sewer and water main construction for
Miller and Allegany area in town and the rehabilitation of the Hills Tank water
Tower. Both projects will continue into the 2012 fiscal year.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2011, the Town's long-term liabilities, not including compensated
absences, landfill closure, bond premiums and postclosure care costs payable,
tolaled $19,093.692 comprised of $12,635,000 related to governmental activiues,
and $7.358,692 related to business-lype activities. Total debt decreased by
$1,186,747 during the fiscal year,

The Charter of the Town of Christiansburg and Code of Virginia limits the Town's
net debt 10 10% of the assessed valuation of real estate within the Town limits.
This limit applies 10 governmental activity debt only, as long-term liabilites of
business-iype funds will be mel by revenues generated by these funds. The

9



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

Town's governmenital activily debt of $12.635,000 15 well below the iegal debt mit
of 5185,755,733 (see Schedule 6 of Statistical Section).

Interest and fiscal charges for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 were $574,940 of the
total governmental activities expenses.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The economic outlook during 2011 was somewhat improved over 2010. We saw a
0.1% increase in employmerit in Montgomery County during the fiscal period from
6.9% t0 6.8% al September 2010 and 2011, respectively,

Another indicator of the state of the economy is the sales tax revenue, which is
directly proporiional to the retail sales. This revenue increased late in the fiscal
year by $64,000. Indicaling some improvement in the economy between budget
years 2010 and 2011. Revenues have not yet recovered (0 pre-recession levels,

Also transient lodging tax revenue increased $63.630, or 8% . and prepared meals
tax revenue increased $904.180, or 20%. S182,0936, or 20%, of the increased
amount is attributed t0 increased sales and $721,244, or 80%, is attributable to a
1% increase in the meals ax rate.

Building permits for new residential units in fiscal year 2010-2011 decreased by 36%
compared (o fiscal year 2009-2010. Overall, building permits fees decreased by
$72,629 indicating building and new construction starts continued 10 decline during
the fiscal period.

These signals seem to indicate that the economy in our area is stabilizing 1o some
extent wilh very small growth in a few areas. The Town also has concerns with
future intergovernmental revenues from both federal and state sources declining as
a result of the continued economic insiability at the state and federal levels
particularly as it relates 10 street maintenance funds and law enforcement funds.

The 2011-2012 budget includes a rate increase for water and sewer fees to help
offset the deficit in the enterprise fund and continues to have conservative
estimates of revenue based on the state of the economy.

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report 1s designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and o
demonstrate the Town's accountability for the resources it receives and their uses.
Questions concerning this repori or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Town Manager or the Director of Finance at 100 East Main Street,
Christiansburg, Virginia 24073, telephone (340)382-6128. The Town's website
address is www.christiansburg.org.



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

ASS5elS
current Assets:
Cash and Casn Equivalents
Cash and Cash Eguivalenis, restricied
Investments
Receivables (net o1 allowance {or uncolleciibles)
Prepaid ltlems
Due {rom (to) Other Funds
Due irom Other Governments
Tortal Current Assels

Capnal Assets (net of accumulated depreciationy

tand
Land Improvements
Buildings and Structures
Machinery and Equipment
vehicles
Infrastruciure
Construction in Progress
Sireets and Highways
Bond lssue Cosl

Toilal Capital Asseis, Net

Total Assels

Liabilines
Accounts Payable
Consumer Deposits
Due to Waler Autharify
Salaries Pavable
Accrued General Obligation Bond Interest
Inierest Payable
Deterred Revenue
Long-Term Liabllities:
Bond Premmum
Due within one vear
Due 1 more than one vear
Other Post-Employment Benetits

Total Liabilities

Net Assels
Invesied in Capital Assets, Nel of Relaled Debt
Restricled for.
Cemetery Perpetual Care
Other Funcuons
Jnrestricied

Toral NGt ASseIs

See accompanying nolas o financial stalements.

Governmental

Business-Type

Exhibit A

Activities Activities Total
5 6,782,724 6.782.724
1,060,073 1.060,073
10,264,092 . 10,264,002
3,000,320 982,430 4,072,750
155,837 156 155.993
44,078 (44,078) -
3i8.482 . 318,482
21,715.606 938.508 22 654,114
2.664.092 12,500 2,676,592
1,863,359 e 1,863,359
25,953.556 19,166,870 45,120,426
2.731.374 19,649,064 22,380438
569,029 - 560,029
1.154.593 1.154.503
413.907 413,907
76,360,171 76.369.171
138.013 - [38.013
111,857,094 38,828,434 150,685,528
133.572.700 30.756.042 173.339,642
1,650,248 1.346 1.651,594
. 303,981 303,981
g 402,886 402,886
72,271 c 72,271
. 74,974 74,974
236,521 e 236,521
21406 21,406
64.783 : $54.783
606,675 781,080 1,388,635
12,737,660 6.678,441 19.416.101
160,218 = 160,218
15.549.782 8,243.608 23,793,300
99.222.004 31,469,741 130,601 835
359,215 350,215
5,826,276 e 5.826.276
12,615,333 53,593 12,668,026
5 118.022.918 31,523,334 149.546,252




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBLIRG

STATEMENT QF ACTIVITIES
FOR TEHE YEAR ENDED JUINE 30, 2011

Program
Revenues
Operatng Capital
Charges lor Granis and Granis and
Fancuons/Programs Expenses Senices Contributions Contnbunons
Govermnmenial Activities
Genera! Government 5 2.376 491 S 3 5 S
Public Sajety 7 298.345 - 306.98! 148.647
Pubhic works 5.154 376 1.184.296 o
Heaith and wellare 3.100 3 2 -
Parks, Recreauon, and Culture 4,214,349 j 022 857 - 1.177.000
Communny Development 1,145,458 : = :
Inlerest on Long-Term Debr 574.940 o o
Tota! Governmental Activities 20.767,098 2.207 153 306 981 1.325.647
Business Tvpe Activiies ik
Wwaler and Sewer 6,368.695 5.855.965
Toial Business Tvpe Activilies 6.369.695 5,855,965 - -
Total Pnimary Governmen! 5 47 136.794 5 8 063,118 5 306.981 S 1.325 647

General Revenues
Taxes
Property
Seles
Prepared Meal
Other
Permis, Fees and Licenses
Revenues From Use of Propeny
investmen! Eamings
Inlergovernmental
Fines and Forfeilures
Cemeitery
Other
Granis in Aid of Construcuon
Translers
Special lem
Total General Revenues and Transiers

Change in Net Assels
Nel Assels, July 1. 2010
Nel Assels June 30 2011

See accompanying notes 10 inancial siatements



Exhibii B

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Change in Net Assels

Primary Government

Governmenital Business-Type
ACUvVIies ACthvVInes Toal

(2,376,491 $ {2,376.491]}
16,842,717 6,842,717}
(3.970.080) (3,970,080,
(3.100) (3,100}
(2,014,492, (2,014,492;
1,145,498} (1,145,488}
1574,940) (574,940}
[16,927.318) 16,927,318
{513,730) 1513.730)

- (513.730]) (513 730}
116.927.,318) i513.730) 5 (117.,441.048)
3.016.086 3.016.086
1,547,345 1.547.345
5,407,998 5.407.998
6,156,636 6,156,636
131.369 131.369
255,366 255,366
254,350 254 350
3.662.382 3,662,382
95,038 95,038
103.464 8 103,464
375,261 137.934 513,195
1.257.323 52.700 1,310.023
(323,006) 323,006 -
900.580 ; 909,580
22.840,10} 513,730 23.362 . 832
5.921.783 o 5,821,783
112.101.135 31.523.334 143.624 460
118,022,018 31,523,334 5 149.546.252




TOWN_OF CHRISTIANSBURG

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS QF JUNE 30, 2011

ASSCIS
Cash and Cash Equivaiems
Cash ang Cash Equivalents, resincied
Investents
Recewables net
Taxes, including penalues et of allowance of 551.426)
Accounts inel of allowance ol $60973)
Prepad hems
Lue from Qiher Funds
Due trom Other Govemmenis
Toal Assets

Liapilmes
ACCOUNIS Payabie
Salanes Pavahle
Dae o Other Funds
Delered Revenue
Tolal Liabiliues

Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Resincied
Comnutied
Assigned
Unass:gned
Tolal Fund Balance

Total Labilibes and IFund B3alance

Ses accompanying noles 1o financial siatements

Exhibit C

Tolal
Speaial Govemnmeniat

General cemnelery Revenue Funds
5 v.5B5.384 5 s - 5 7.585.384
- - 1.969.653 | 969.5653
8.229.407 322.445 - 8.551.852
Bo. 727 B9 727
850.124 - . B6O.124
155.837 o 155.837
47.395 36.760 . B4,1G65
239.124 - 70.358 3i8 482
17.206.999 359.214 2.040 011 19 615.224
1.650.248 1.650.248
72272 0 72272
36.769 3.317 40.086
2047 10.359 21 406
1.761.336 22 876 1 784,012
- 358.214 o 356214
420.0B8 a 2.026.335 2 455,423
2.190.9495 2,199,905
12,816,580 - o 12.816.580
15,445,663 350.214 2,026,335 17.831 212
S 17.206.000 5 359.214 5 2.049.01) § 19.615224




TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBLURG

GOVERNMENTAL IFUNIIS
" RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS QF JUNE 30, 20]1

Fund Balances-olal governmental funds §

Amaunts reporied for govemaenial achiviues in the Siatement of Nett Assels are different because

The insialiment of the redl propery axes recelvable would notl be recograzed lor governimenilal
achiviies because it (s nol coliectibie wilnin 45 days aliei yearend

Caplial assets used in governimenial acitviues are nol inanclal resources and there(ore are
nol reported In the govermmenial unds

Governmenial capial assets $ 128.788.047
Less acceumulaled deprecianon and amortlzalicn 16.931.852)

Compensaled absences are not due and payable in the current year and thereflare are not
reporied in the govemmenial funds,

andlilf closure and postclosure care cosl are nol due and payable i the current year
angd inerefore are nol reporied in ihe governmental funds

Accrued imentsick pey (OPEB) are not due and payabie in the current year and therelore are not
reporied in the govemmenltal unds.

Inerest payable used in the govemmental aciivihes ae nal payable (rom current r#=sources
and inerelore are not reporied n the governmenial [unds

Govermimental junds reporl the effect of bond premiums when debi is first ssued. whereas ifiese
amounis are delerred and amorized in the Siatement of Achivites and repored as a longd-lenm
habillty on the Staiement of Net Assels.

Longienn liabililles are not due and payable in ihe current year and therelore are nol reporied
in the governmetial [unds:

2007 Revenue Bond (1.7B0.000)

2004 Revenue Band 19,840,000

19935 General Obliganon Nole 1.015.000,
Nel ASSeIs of Governmiemal Aclivilies S

See accompanying noles 10 financial siatemesnts.

LExhibir [y

17.830.212

2.140,4G9

111.857.095

{566,753}

{142,583

1GD.218)

(236.521}

(G4, 783

{12.635.000]

118.022.918



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBUR

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENULS. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

EQR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2011

HResernkes
Taxes,
IPrapeny
Sales
PPrepared Meal
Other

Permius, Privilege Fees and Regulalory [acenses

Fines and Farieilures
Revenues [rom Use of Properny
Invesunen Eamings
Charges {or Services
mergovemmental
Cemetery
Qmher

Tolal Revenues

Expandilures
General Government Adymistration
Public Safe'y
Public Works
lealin and wellare
IParks, Recreation and Culture
Community Development
Capual Outlay
Dem Service:
Principal Reurement
Inlerest and Fiscal Charges
Toial Expendiiures

Excess of Revenues over Expendilures

Other Finanaing Sources (LUses)
Ihsurance Recovenus
Transiers (o) from:
waler and Sewer Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Cemetery Fund
Tota Other Financing sources Lses)

Specian lem
Transler of lands (rom other organzalbons

Nt Changes in fund Balance

Fund Ralance, July 1. 2000
Fund Balance, June 30 2011

See accompanying notes o inancial statements

Cxhibil £

Total
Speaa: Sovemmental
General Cemelery Revenue Funds

s 3.006.273 5 S5 5 3.006.273
1.547.345 1.547.345
5 407,998 5.407.998
G 156,636 6.156.636
131,369 131,368
93.038 . 95 Q38
255.366 . . 255.366
234.1) 7.797 12.442 254,330
2.207.153 66.695 o 2.273.B48
3. 797190 o 320,820 4,118.010

o 36.760 - 36.7G9

257.939 - 1.245 484 1,503 408
23.006.418 111.261 1.578,731 24.786.410
2,077.241 . 2,077.241
6.661.587 i45.310 8.8B06.897
4,848 285 - - 4.848,285
3.100 . 4100
3.2B6,646 152,922 3 430 568
1132.826 . . 1.132.826
1.365.232 0,468 519,142 1.897.842
530,000 - . 530.000
583,981 2 a 583.981
20.4892.808 162,350 664 452 21.318.740
2,603,520 (51.120) Ui4.279 3 466.670
48852 o 48.852
(323.096} - - (323.086)

176,427} 0 |76 427

120.560) 120,560 - :
(571.230) 120.560 176 427 274 244)
909.580 809.580

2 (032.200 69,431 2.000.286 4,102,007
13.413.373 280.783 25.049 [3.729.205
5 15.445 663 S 350.214 S 2.026.335 5 17.831.212




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBLUIRG

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENULES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR GNDE N 2011

Nel Change in Fund Balances - 1olal govemmenital [und L]

Amouns reporied for governmenial acinviies in the Sialement of Actvines are dilierent because.

Revenues in the Stalement af Aclivites thal do nol provide current inancial resources are not
repored as revenues in the [unds:

Change in deferred revenues 5 {i7.025)
Change in faxes recenvahle 26,838

Governimental unds repon cagpntal oatliays as expendnures However, in (he Siaieimeant of
Achvities, 1he cosl of those assaels 15 deprecialed over Ltheir estumaled aselul ives:

Expenditures far capinil Assets s L1.553.672
[.ess curren! year deprecialon (1.450.808)

The value ol 1he roads 1aken over by the Town from developers s considered contribaled
capial and 1s included in capial assels.

Governmental [unds report an ncrease n compensaled absences 2s an expendiure
However, in 1he Sialement of Net Assels the addition increases long-ienn liabliues

Governimenldl [unds repon the decrease n post closure Care Cosls 4s an expendilune.
However, n the Siaternent of Net Assets the reductions reduce long-erm habihities

Governmenial (unds repon repayment ol bond principal as an expendilure. However in the
Swatemnent of Net Assels the repayiment reduces long-lenm habiliues,

Governmental inds report premiums on bonds as other inancing saurces and uses, However,
In ke Slalement of Net Assets ihese bonds are reponead as a long-eam habiliny.

Governunenlal lunds do not incluge amaortizalion as an expendiiure. However. bond 15sue cosls
are capaalized and amoruzed over the hie of the bond on the Slalement ol Revenues,
Expendinures and Changes in Fund Balances

Current year amoriizauon

Accrued interest expense reporied in 1he Stalement of Aciviues does no! require the use of
current hinancial resources and s therelore not reported as expendiiures in govemmemal funads

Accrued menysick pay (OPEB) in the Sialement of Achvites does not require the use of current

hnancial resources and is therefore nol reporled as expenditures in governimental funds

Chang in Net Assels of Governmenial Acuvilies 5

See accompanying noles 1o financial statements.

Exhibil F

4,102,007

9.813

102 864

1.257.322

(81.710)

9.5049

530.000

4,049

(5.804)

9041

{15.218)

5.021 783



TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBURG

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENLITURES. AND CHANGILES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
hd EN NE 1

Beginming unassigned land halance

Revenues (nflows;
General Property Taxes
Consumer Ltilny Taxes
Business License Taxes
Franchise License Taxes
Motar vehicle Licenses
Bank Franchise Taxes
Transient Lodging Taxes
Prepared Meal Tax
Cigaretie Tax
Bullding and Zoning Fees
Court and Parking Fines
Interes!
Rentals and Sale of Surplus llems
Sohd Waste Service
DPR Fees and Conributions
Miscelancous
Non Calegorncal
Swene Aad GAIZC) e1c
Sales Tax
DICE Grants
Emegrgency Service Granis
sweet Maimenance Paymoents
Leaw Enlaorcement Funds
Nanonal Guard Armory
Non-Revenue Receipts
Amounts Availabie lor Expendinures

Expenditures (Ouflows:
Current:
General Government Admmisiration
Palice Depanment
Volunieer Fire Depariment
Liesaving and Rescue
Inspections
Siree! Depariment
Sold Wasie Service
Buding and Grounds
Nauwoenal Guard Armory
Murnicipal Bunding
Municipal Shop
wellareSocial Services
Parks and Recreation
Aqualc Cenier
Library
Planning/Communiny Development
Engineering
Debi Service
Tolal Expendiures
Excess of revenues over expendiures

Oiher (inancing (Sources) uses
Translers

Total other INAancing ISOUrces) Lses

Ending Budgaelary Fund Balance

See accompanying noles to financial starements

Exhibn G

vanance wih

Final Budge: -
Budgeled Amounts Posilive
Ongunal Final Actual (Negalve)
B 17.223 057 F) 17.223 057 S 100100484 s 8.312573)
2 900,500 2 900,300 3006273 105.773
526.000 526.000 518848 {7152)
1.964.000Q 1,9G4.000 1.804.569 (69.431)
166 200 166.200 141,497 (24.703)
415.000 415.000 438.084 23.084
490,000 450,000 649,634 159,634
760,100 760,100 812,331 52,231
5.180.000 5.180.000 5,407,998 217,908
750,000 730.000 721820 {28,180
207.000 207,000 131.369 {75.631)
100.000 110,000 95038 {14.962)
140,000 165.000 234.1n 69 11
122,000 122,000 255 366 133.366
1,226,000 1.226.000 1.1B4. 206 4],704)
1.115 600 1.140.600 1.032.216 (108.384)
161 050 201,050 248,579 4£7.529
12506 00 1 256G (X2 1.324.045 668 045
1400000 1400000 1.547.345 147 345
134,808 134 808
46 Q0K 46.0060) 48,833 2033
2.5505.500 2.833.500 2,833 444 1S6)
432.000 432.000 431728 272}
3.000 3.000 4.086 1,086
20,000 20.000 48852 28.852
390 160.007 36.547.007 34 055 754 (5.491.253)
2,603,640 2.752.450 2,284,023 468,427
5 765.650 5,760,700 5.585.225 63 475
1.130.563 1.074.011 983.665 90.340
T81.79] 782 5998 527,282 255.716
396 709 349.395 308.683 40.712
3.47541) 3,473.152 3.569.026 404,126
1.2B5.379 1,273,706 1.152.176 121.530
59.544 59.724 54074 5.650
33.640 33,673 15,677 17.696
144 462 I44 822 96,033 48,789
1702719 171.303 174.366 (3.063)
3.100 3.100 3100
2.13.022 2.059.032 | 687 959 371073
1.712.435 1,634,119 1.750.683 (116,564
15.000 15.000 15.000
562,242 533 714 455,808 77.906
742,946 746,583 706,137 40, 446
1113.981 1.113 981 1,113.98] o
22,200,374 22,481 463 20.402,808 1.988.565
16 968 633 17.065.544 13.562.856 {7.470.818)
1.305.723 1,305,723 620.082 GAa5.641
1395 723 1,305,723 520,082 685,641
5 15.662 00 s 15.759.821 ] 12.942 774 s (8,165.459




WN QF CHRISTIANSBLIRG Exhibnt G

(conhnued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGLS IN FUND BALANCLS -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Exalananon of Diflerences between Buddelary Inflows and Outllows and GAAP Revenues and Expendiures

Sourcesanllows ol Resources

Aclual amoun (budgeiary bas:s) of "avalable lor expenduures® rom (e budgetan compartsan
sialement

The fund balance ai 1he begimning of the year 1s a buddelary resource b 1s nol a curren! yoar
revenue [or inancial statement purposes (Exhibn )

5 34.055.754

0.010 484
Insurance recovenes are inflows of budgelary resources but are nol revenaes (or financial reporung
purposes (Exhibit E) 48 852

Taral general fund revenues as reporied on the slalement ol revenues. expendiures. and changes

in (und balances (Exhubit E} 5 23.006 4.8

UsesOuliows of Resources.

Actual amounlt ibudgelary basis) of "olal expendiiures” from the budgelary
COMPArson siaement

5 620,082
Translers 10 other [unds are oulflows of budgelary resources bl are not expendiares for financial
repaning purposes (Exnhibt 1£). (620 082)
Towal general lund expendiures as renoried on ihe statemen! of revenues. expendiures, and
changes in (und balances (Exhiit £) §

See accompanying notes 1o financial stalements.



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY FFUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 20]1

ASSCIS

Currenl Assets:
Accounis Recevable (Net of Allowance [or
uncoliectible Accounts of 5168,.608)
Prepaid ltems
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Asseis:
water Sysiem
Equipmernt
Waste Water System
Waste Water Treatment Plant
[Less: allowance for Depreciation
Tolal Non-Current Assets

Total Assets
Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued General Obligation Bond Interest
Consumer Deposils
Due 10 Waler Authority
Current Maturities VA Revolving Loan Fund
Compensated Absences
Due o Other Funds
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities.
VA Revolving Loan Fund
Toral Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabililies

Nel Assets
Invested N Capital Assets, Net of Relaied Debil
Unresincied Assels
Total Nel Assels

See accompanymg notes to nnancial sialements.

Exhibit H

Business-type
Actlvities -
Enierprise Fund

water andg Sewer
Fund

S 982,430
156

982.586

11,786,437
3,338,231
17.005.289
31,422,088
(24,724.512)

38.828433

39,811.0i9

1,346
74974
303.981
402,886
680,252
101,728
44.078

1.6096.245

G.678,440

6,678,440

8.287.685

31.469.74]
53,583

5 31,523.334




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGLES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
water and Sewer Service Fees
water and wastewater Connection Fees
Ienaities and Qther
Total Operating Revenues

Operating EXpenses.

Salaries and Wages

Employee Benefits

Water Authonty Purchases

Unlines

Repairs and Mainienance

Depreciation and Amortization

Materials and Supplies

General and Administrative
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Nonoperating Revenues (EXxpenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Cap:tal Contributions
Transfers In (Oul)

Change in Nel Assels

Nel Assets, July [, 2010
Neil Assets, June 30. 2011

See accompanying notes 10 financial sitatements
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Exhibit [

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund

water and Sewer
Fund

] 5,484,183
371,782
137,934

5,993,899

1,508,530
198,480
1.397.224
286,277
282,621
1.557.751
610,572
256.950

5,098,405

(104,508}

{271,280)

{271.290)

(375,7986)

52,700
323,086

31,523,334

& 31.523.334




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash Flows from Operaling Aclivilics
Cash Recewved From;
Cuslomers
Cash Paid to/or:
Emplovees
Supplies and Senvices
Net Cash Flows [rom Operating Activines

Cash Flows [rom Non-Capital Financing Aclivilics
Transler [rom General Fund
Interfund borrowing

Net Cash Flows lrom Non-Capita!l Financing Activities

Cash Flows fram Capilal and Relaled Financing Activilies
Payment of Principal
Interest on Debt
Purchase of Fixed Assels

Net Cash Fiows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Invesling Aclivities
None
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activines

Net Change in Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalenis. July 1. 2010
Cash and Cash Equivaients. June 30. 2011

Reconciliation of Operating Income (L.oss) 0 Nel Cash Flows

From Operating Activilies:

Operaling Income (LoSs)
Adwstments 1o reconcite operating income (loss) 1o net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Deprecialion and Amoruzation
Change in Current Asse!s and Curren: Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease 1N Current Assets
Accounts Receivabie
Prepaid ltems
Accounts Payable
Due to Waler Authoriry
Consumer Deposits
Compensated Absences
Net Cash Flows from Operating Acnvities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activines:
Coniribuied Capital - Grants in Aid of Construction

See accompanying notes to financial stalements
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Exhibit J

Enterprise Fund

water & Sewer
Fund

s 6,119.909

(1.695,282)
{2.800.535)

1.624,092

323.086
44,078

367.174

(656.747
(350.681

)
)
{983.838)
1.991.266}

S {104.506)

1,657.751

97.163
1156)

2

33.264

28,846

11,728

S 1.624,092

& 52,700



TOwN OF CHRISTIANSBLIRG

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDIED JUNE 30, 2011

B

Summary of Signilican! Accountng Policies

A

The Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Chnsuansburg, Virginia (the “Town’) operales on a Councl-Manager form ot government and prowvides municipal
senvices 0 its residents including hire and police prolechon, planning, engineering, inspeclions, pudhc works and public
utllites. parks. and general governmenl. The Town also provides waler, sewer, rejuse collection, and publc lransit services 1o
11s citzens The Town 1s the county seal of Montgemery County and has axing powers subyec! 10 state-wide restricions and
mns. The [inancial sraiemenis present e Town as 1he primary government. A componen! untt 1s an enuty for which the
Town s considered (o be financially accountable. The Town does not have any component units.

For financial reporting purposes, in conlormance with GASB Siatement 14, Nefining the Governmental Reportintg Enhiy. the
Town includes all funds. account groups. agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent
upon the Town Council. Control by, or dependence ugpon. the Town Council was determined on the basis of (he following.

I The Town's ability (0 designale the management or signilicantly conirol the operations of the enlity.

S

The Town's responsibility lor the fiscal matiers of the enity, including the authonzation of budgetary appropnations.
lunding of operatmg deficiencies. control or use of surplus funds, responsibillty or debis. and control over ine collections
and disbursement of [unds.

3. The scope of publc services rendered by and the geodraphic location of the entty

Based on 1the [oregoing criiena, the Linancial activines of no other organizations are included in the accompany.ng financial
statements.

Financial Statement Presentation

In February 2009, Govermnmental Accountng Slandards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporiing and
Governmenial Fund Type Deliniions. The objective of GASB Statement No, 54 15 o enhance the usefulness of fund balance
mformaton by providing clearer lund balance classlhications thal can be more consisiently apphed and 2y clanfying the
exisung governmental lund tvpe dehniions. Beginning with vear end June 30. 2011, und balance 15 cisplayed in accordance
with GASB No. 54 using the {ollowimng classilicauons

1) Nonspendable jund balance - Inveniones. prepaid items. dccounts recevaple and other current assets (hat are consumed
in the course of aperanons that cannot be converied 10 cash or are not expected 10 be available (0 pay current labihnes.
This classificaton inclugdes funds set aside (or perpeleal care of the cemelery.

2} Restricted fund balance - The resources of a governmental lund thal are subject 1o constrainis imposed by exiernal paries

or law. These resirichions Inciude such things as debt covenanis' or consirants impesed by legislation or federal and siate
agencies on the use ol inlergovernmenital revenue, such ag grants and coniracls,

3) Cormmitted jund bDalance - Represents amounts lhat have been designated by Town Council resolubon or by lown
ordinance. These funds may only be spent [or the purpose iniended by the resolunon or ordinance ana can only be
uncommilited by the same action taken o commil the funds

4] Assigned jund balance - Represents the nei resources of governmenial iunds that ine governmeni iniends 1or a specific
purpose. Assigned resources do not require formal action of the goveming body. The permanent lund's nei resources
would be assigned [und balance as well as any net resources remaining in e special revenue funds.

s) Unassigned fund balance - Represents funds available for any purpose and represenis expendable finantial resources
thal can be used 1o meet contingencies and cash flow requirements.

Expenditures shall be charged lirst o restncted fund balance. second to committed fund balance, third 1o assigned fund
Lalance and [inally 1o unassigned fund balance as approprate lor the expendiure and 1o the jund bemg expended.

The Town Manager, in consullation with the Director of Finance and Town Council, shall detenming [unds (0 be classified
as assigned

Except in extraordinary clrcumstances. unassigned fund balance will not be used 1o fund any porion of the ongoing and
routne operating expendiiures o! the Town. Unassigned (unds are 10 be usea prmarily 10 insure adeguale reserves, 10
respond 10 unloreseen emergencies. 1o provide cash flow, and 10 proviae overall financial stablity

In June 1999, Governmental Accounung Sandards Board {(GASB) issued Siaiement No. 34, Basie Financal Slalements - and
Management's Discusston and Analysis - for Siaie and Local Governments  GASB Sialement No. 34 esiablished new
requirements and a new reporing mode! for Ine annual inancial reporis of siate and local govermnmenis. GASB Statemeni
No. 34 was developed to make annual reporis easier 1o undersiand and more useful 1o people who use govermnmental
linancial Information to make decisions. GASB Stalement No 24 includes:

22



TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBURG

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEAR ENDEDR JUNE 30, 2011

1

Summiary ol Signihicant Accounlting Policies (coniinued)

B.

Financial Statement Presentanon (continued)

Muanagement's Thscussion and Anaiysis (MDE&A) - MD&A introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analyucal
overview ol 1he government's nancial aciviies mn a narraitve lormal. An analysis of the government's overall financial
positon and resulls of opéerations 1s included #o assist users in assessng whether {inancial positon has improved or
deleriorated as a resuli of tne year's activities.

Gouvernment-Wide Financial Stalemen!s - Present [Inancial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and {ull accrual accounting for all of the government's activiies. These stalements will include all assets, habiliies,
revenues and expenses ol the pnimary government.

The Town does nol allocate indirect expenses  The governmentiwide slalements segregate governmenial actlviies, which
are normally supporied by taxes and intergovemmental revenues. and business-type activines, which rely on user fees and
charges [or support.

Stalement of Nel Assets - Presents both governmental and business-type acivibes on the lull accrua,. econormc resource
basis. which incorporales long-ierm assels and recevables, as well as long-lerm debt and obliganons.

Statement of Aclivities - Presents the net cost of each «ndmwdual {unchion  Program revenues are presented as a reducuon of
Ine 1olal cost of providing program services  Program revenues mclude charges for services, operalng granis and
caninbunons and capital grants that are direclly associaled with a specific function. Taxes and other revenue sources nol
reponed as program revenue are included as general revenue

FFund Financial Sialements - These inancial statemenis presentanformaton on major governmenlal and enterprise {funds.

The accounts are organized on the basis of fund classiicanon each of which s considered 10 be a separate accouning
enilty The operanon of each fund is accounied [or by providing a separale sel of sell-balancing accounis thal comprise its
assets, liabilines, fund balances or ne! assels, revenues, and expendilures or exXpenses. as appropriate

Government resources are allocaled to and accounied for in indwvidual funds based upon the purposes for which they are 1o
be spent and the means by which spending acuviies are conlrollied. The vanous funds are grouped 1n the basic financial
siatements as {ollows:

Governmental Funds - accounts [or expendable financial resources, other than proprietary und ypes. Governmenial fund
Iypes use the llow of curren! nancial resources measurement focus The major governmental {unds consisis al:

General Fund - The General Fund IS the maor operaling lund of the Town  All unresincled resources, except those
required 10 be accounted 1or in another fund, are accounted lor in this fund. The general pperatng expenses and hxed
charges are paid {from s fund.

Special Revenue Fund - This fund s used 1o account lor he proceeds ol specilic revenue sources that are legally
resiricied by contrac! or donor 1o expendilure lor a specified purpose.

Proprietaryy Fund - accounts for operations that are {inanced and operated in @& manner similar 10 privale business enlerprises.
The proprietary fund measurement focus 15 on the [low of economic resources QOperaiing revenues inclucle charges for
services and other revenue. Operaung expenses include personal services, as well as other services and charges, malenals
and supplies and depreciation. The propnetary fund lype Is:

Enterprise Fund - Finances and accounts for the acquisition, operation, and manienance of governmenial faciives and
services hal are supporied by user charges. The operations of water and sewer lacilines are accounted [or and reporied
n 1he Water and Sewer Fund.

In accordance with Governmental Accouniing Siandards Board (GASB) Siatement No 20, Accourning and Furancial Reporting
Jjor Proprietary Funcds and Other Governmenial Emtties Thar Use Proprieary Fund Accounting. the Town has elecled 10 apply
only applcable FASB Siaiements and Inierpretations 1ssued on or before November 30, 1980 hat do not contradict GASB
pronouncements In 11s accouniing and reporung prachces [or 1S propneiary operalions

Permanent Fund - Permanent funds are used 10 report resources thal are legally restncied 10 the extent that onty earmings, not
prncipal may oe used [or purpases that suppon the reporung government's programs.

Cemelery pand - This fund is used (o accounl! lor principal trust amounts received and relaled interest income. The interest
pornon of the trust can be used 1o maintain the community cemeltery. On April b 2008 the Town took over control of the
Town's cemelery from the Cemelery Corporanon.



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

NOTIELS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED UNE 30, 2011

i Summans ¢! Sigruficant Accounung Polcies iconbnued)

B.

Financial Staiement Presenlation connnued)

Budgel and Aciual Comparison Sialermneryt - This stalement 1s presenled 1o demonstrale whether resources were obtaned
and used in accardance with the government's legally adooted budgel. The Town may revise ine onginal budge: over the
course of the vear for various reasons Buagerary informaltion continues (o be provided, and includes a companson ol the
government's original adopied budge1 (o the currenl comparnson of final budget and actual resulis.

Basis of Accountng

Basis of accounung relers 1o the point at which revenues and expendilures or expenses are recognized in the accounis and
reporied in the inancial starements. Basis of accouning relates to the nming of the measurements made. regardiess of the
measurement focus applied.

Governmenial aclivines in the government-wide stalemenls are presenied using the eConomic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are ne propnetary iund financial statements. Revenues are recognized when earned
and exXpenses are recogrnized when a llability has been incurred, regardless of the timmg of related cash fows,

Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when [hey
become measdrable and avallable. General [und tax revenues are considered measurable when they have been levied. To
be consiciered avallable, and thus susceplibie 10 accrual. the taxes must be collecied within the Town's period of availability
ol 45 qaavs from the end of the current liscal penod. Uncoilecied iaxes a! the end of ihis pernod are reported as deferred
revendes. Inmeresi ncome and inergovernmental receivables are consideied suscentible 10 accrual. Expendilures are
generally recognized under the meoedified accraal basis of accounting when the relazed fund hability is incurred. However
debt service expendilures as well as expendilures relaled 10 compensaled absences are recorded only when payment 1s
due.

As a result of the dilferen: measurement focus and basis ol accounting used n preparing the government-wide slalements, a
reconciiaton between the governmenl-wide and [und hinancial sialemenis 1s necessary Exhibil D presenis reconcilianon ol
he net assets as reporied on the Slalement of Net Assels (Exhibit A) 10 1o1al governmenial fund balance as reponed on the
Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund (Exhibii C). Exhibit F presents a reconciliation of change in ner asseis as reporied on the
Statement of Actviies (Exhibn By and the 1o1al changes in jund balance as reporied on the Slaiement of Revenues.
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Fund (Exhibn E}

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cerulicales of deposit. demand deposlis. and short-ierm investments with
onginal maluntes ol three monihs or less {rom the date of acquisihon.

Invesiments
Invesiments are sialeq arl tar value.

Allowance [or Uncotleclible Taxes ang Accounts Recetvable

The Town calculates its allowance for uncollectble recervables based on hisiorical collection data. Al June 30. 2014, the
ahowance for uncollectible taxes and accounis recenvable was 5112.389 for e General Fund and $168,608 [or the Waler and
Sewer Fund.

Properny Taxes

Property 1axes are assessed al ther value on Januan 1. Real eslale tax 5 pavable n one insiallment on December 5. On
January |, real property 1axes become an enlorceable lien agans! the property. Personal property tax is due on or belore
December 5 dunng the yvear of assessment. The Town bills and collects axes and recognizes revenue upon levy lor
government-wide purposes For the lund linanoial stdlements, 1ne Town recognizes revenue (o the exient mat 1t resulls In
current receivables

The annua! assessment {or real esiaie 1s based on 100% ol the assessed fair markel value. Tne 1ax rales are esiablished
annually, without imntatton. The tax rale for real estale was S.1126 per $100 of assessed value for the year The personal
property 1ax rale was $45 per S100 of assessed value for the year In 1998, the Commonweallh enacled the Personal
Property Tax Reliel Act The Commonwealih share of the 1ax was 60% for iscal year 2011 Busmess furiture. fixiures, and
machinery and 10ols 1axes are assessed al a rale of $.45 per 5100 of assessed vaiuauon
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1 Summary of Signilicanl Accounting Policies (contiinued)

H

Capulal Assets

Capial assetls acquired or consirucied by the Town with a value in excess ol $5000 are reporied n the applicable
governmental or business-lype actviies columns in the government-wide financial staiemenis  Capital assels pelonging 1o
the propnetary tund are aiso reporied in the apphcablie fund financial stalements  Capital assets are recorded at hisloncal
cost or esumated histoncal cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capilal assels are recorded at falr market value when
received  Depreciaton s recorded on a straight-ine basis over the esimaled usetul life of each capnal assel. No
deprecialion expense 1s recorded (or land, construclionIn-progress, or sireets and highways

The estmated uselu! lives lor capital assels are as follows:

Land Improvemenis 15 years
Building and Improvements 25-50 years
Equipmeni and Venicies 5-20 years
Intrastruciure i5-40 years

In accordance with GASB Stalement No 34, the Town's inirasiruciure has been capitakzed, retroactvely, upon adoption of
the standard

Major outiays [or capital asse!s and improvements are capllalzed as projects are constructea. Inlerest ncurred dunng the
consirucuon phase ol capial assels of business-type acuviies 1s included as part of the capiialized value of 1he assets
consirucied. No interes! expense was caplalbzed dunng the curreni year.

Estimates

Managemenl uses estimaies and assumplions in prepanng 115 linancial sialements. Those estimales and assumptions affect
the reporied amounis of assels and liablliues, the disclosure of conungent habilines, and reporied revenues, expendiures,
and expenses. Actual resulls could differ from those esumates.

Long-lerm Obligatons

in the government-wide [inancial statemenis, and proprietary funa ypes in the fund linancial staiements, long-term debt and
other ‘ongterm obhgatnons are jeported as labilites in the applcable governmenial aclivities, business-iype aclivines, or
proprietary fund-lvpe siaement of nei assels. Bond premiums and discounis, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amornzed over the hile of the bonds using the eltecuve interes! method. Bonds payable are reporied net of the applcable
bond premuum or discoun! Boand 1ssuance cosis dre reporied as delerred charges and amcrlized over the term of the related
dent

Budgels and Budgelary Accouning

The Town adheres 1o the following procedures i establisning ihe budgelary data rellecied n the Budgel and Aciua)
Companson Siatement (Exhibit G):

a The Town Manager, n coordination wilh the Finance Commities, prepares the buaget and the Finance Comminee
presents it o the Town Council.

b. Legal notice oi the public heanng |s published n the newspaper al least 10 days prior 10 the heanng. Nonce contains
informaton as o date, place, and ume, and solicits citizen atiendance or writlen commenis at the heanng with a synopsis
ol the budgei

C The public hearng s held at least seven days (Silate Coue |5 1-162 as amended) pnior 1o approval of the budget.

d Budger 15 approved a1 teast seven days aller pushe heanng, and no laler than the beginning of the new (iscal vear,
Councii sets tax raies [or real estate and personal property

e Nouce of budgel adoption and availabilty [or viewing 0! adopled budgel 15 publshed in a local newspaper one lime,
within thirty (30) days of adopnon

[, The bugget basis is adopied In accordance with the moditied accruai basis of accounting
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Summary of Signicant Accounung Pobcies (continued)

L

Comgensaled Absences

1115 The Town's policy 10 permil employees 10 accumulale earnec bul unused compensared absences. For government-wide
reporiing. a habiaty 1s recorded for compensaled absences when services are rendercd and employees have eamned the nght
10 receive compensation for such services.

Town employees eam vacaton and sick ieave as (ollows:

Vacarion:
« Twelve days per year lor less than bve {ull vears of service
*  Fifleen davs per year lor more than hive but iess than ten full years of senvice
 Eighleen days per year tor 1en full years or more of senice

Sick leave.
«  One and one-fourth days per month with untimited accraal

Accumualed ieave is pand upon fermination  The maximum would be 32 davs plus any sick leave accumulared, subject 10
limitations, after July | of the flscal year. After [ive vears of employment. an employee. upon reiremenl. will be paid for one-
fourth of accumulaled sick leave o a maximum of 510.000. No sick leave is paid ou!l upon terminatcn

Compensaled Absences

The Town's haoility ar June 30, 201! lor these compensaled absences was.

Current Long-Term
Portion Ponion Toal
General Fund ] 56.675 S 510.077 & 566,752

Laabllnes for compensated absences are not llquidaied untl leave is actually taken by employees or leave balances are paid
upon terminaion. The Town has esumaled that 10% of the compensated absences balance can be hquigaled wilh
expendable avallable resources, and are considered a current hability. Both current and non-current porions of campensaled
absences 10laling $566,732 are recorded for governmental acuvitles in the govemnmentwide stalements and represent a
reconciling item between the government-wide and {und preseniations

Compensaied absences earned Dy employees and charged 10 the proprigtary fund are expensed and accrued as a liability
when mcurred. At June 30, 2001, the liabilities for compensaread absences of the enterpnse (und were $101.728

3 Deposis and Invesiments

€] 11

Deposits with banks are coverec by 1the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporanon (FDIC) and colialeralized In accordance wiih
the Virginia Security [or Pupiic Deposiis Act (ihe "Act") Secuon 2 2-4400 el seq. ol the Code ol Virginia Under the Ac!. banks
and savings instlutons holding pubhic deposits In excess of the amount msured by the FDIC must piedge colliateral io the
commonweallh ol Virginia Treasdry Board. Financial Insiiunons may choose berween iwo colialeralzaton melthodologies -
and depending upon hal choace, will pleage colialeral that ranges i the amounts trom 50% to 130% of excess deposiis
Accordingly, all deposliis are considersd fully collaieralized.

Al year ena. the carrying value ol the Town's deposils wilh banks and savings instimutions was $18.234.,773. Of the Town's
bank balances, S$18 234.Y73 was covered by Federal deposiory nsurance or collateralized as required by the virginia
Secunty {or Pubhc Deposit Accounts.

invesiments

Town and Stale siatute (Code of Virdlnia, Chapter 3, Title 26) aulhorize local governments and other public bodies 10 invest in
obhganons ol he Unned Siales or agencies lhereol, obligations of the Commonwealih of Virgima or poltical subdivisions
ihereol, oblhgations of Ihe Internatonal Bank for Reconsiruction and Development (world Bank), the Asian Developmen! Bank,
the Alncan Developmenl Bank, *prime quality® commercial paper and certain corporale noles; bankers' accepiances,
repurchase agreements and the Stae Treasurer's Local Govermnment Invesiment Pool (LGIP).

Deposiis and mvesimenis of the Town are categorized below to glve an indicaton ol the level ol risk assumed by the enlity
4l vear-end. Calegory 1 includes invesimenis that are insured or regisiered or for which the securlies are held by the Town In
the Town's name. Category 2 inciuoes uninsured and unregisiered Invesiments for which the secunues are held by he
proker or dealer bank trust depariment or salzkeeping agenl In the Town's name. Category 3 includes unminsured and
unregisiered investrnents for which the secuarlues are held by the broker or dealer or by its trusi department or safekeeping
agent but not in the Town's name  As of June 30. 2011, the Town's deposit and investmeni balances were as follows:
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3 Deposils and Investmenis iconmnnued)

Calegory
Non- Fair
I 2 3 Calegorized Value
Deposits - - - 7 842,797 7842 7097
Ceriifsicales of Deposit - . - 8.,551.852 8.551.852
Money Market - . - 1,712,240 1,712,240
Toials . - - 18,106,889 18.106.8859

The lollowing table provides a reconcilialon of invesiments 10 the Siatement of Nel Assels In Exhibit A

Invesiment! Type Fair value
Certficares of Deposit $ B,551.852
Money Market 1,712,240

Toial Invesiments S 10.264.,002

4 Recenables
Recenables as of June 30. 2011 consisied of the (ollowing:

Sovernmental Activires:

Special
Receivables General Revenue Totals
Taxes 5 2324757 S - § 2324757
Due from Government 230,124 79.358 318,482
Accounis 921.097 a 021,007
Gross Receivables 3.484.978 759,358 3,564.336
Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounis 156.082 - 156.082
Recewvables net s 3.641.060 5 79,358 5 3,720,418
BUSINESS-1YDE ACUVILES:
Receivables water & Sewer
Accounts 1,151,038
Less Aliowance for Doubtiul AcCounts {168.608)
Recevables, net S 982,430

The taxes recelvaple account i largely comprised oi the current and prior five vears of uncollected 1ax levies 10r personal
property. and the current and past ningieen years of uncollecied real esiale tax levies. The colleciability of these accounis
has been considered in the aliowance [or uncollectible accounts.

Amounts due from/so other funds consist of the following at June 30:

Due from:
Special
water & Sewer Revenue General
Fund Fund Fund
e 10
General Fund S 44.078 § 3317 5 -
Permanent Fund 5 - s . L] 36,769

w

Irtetuna Receivables. Payables and Transters

Iner-lund transters consist of the ollowing al June 30
Translers in

Special Permanent
waier & Sewer  Revenue icemerery)
Fund Fund Fund
Transier out
General Fund 3 323.096 5 176,427 § 120,560

27
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6. Due from OMher Governmenia Units

armounts due from other governmental uniis at June 30 are as 10110ws:
Governmental

Federal granis - direct

Commonwealth ol Virginia grants
tncludes federal pass-through awards)

Other:
Sales 1ax
Other

7. Capnal Assess

Capital assel acilvity for the yvear ended June 30 was as (ollows:

Governmental Activites
Mal 15, N1 deprecial

Lanag
Construction n Progress
Sireets and Highways
Total Capnal Assets. not depreciated

Capita 1S, deprecialed:
Buildings and Structures
Accumulated Deprecianon

Net Buldings and Structures

Infrastructure
Accdmulated Depreciation
Net Inlrastruciure

Machinery and Eguipment
Accumnulated Depreciaion
Net Machmery and Equipment

Land Improvemenis
Accunulated Depreciation
Nel Land Improvemenis

vehucies
AcCCumulaled Depreciation
Net velicles

Bond Issue Cost
Accumulaled AmMornzauon
Net Bond Issue Cosl

Total Caplial Assels Being Depreciated
Less: Accumulated Depreciabon
ang Amortizaton
Nel Total Capllal Assets depreciaied

Governmenial Activilies. Capilal Assels, Net

INESS1VDE ACtvitie

apital Assels. not
Land

Towal Capnal Assels, not deprecialed

epreciale

510502802 S

ACliviies

5 7.502

57.777

239,124

14,078

5 318,482

Balance Balance

July 1 2010 Increases Decreases  June 30, 201!
§ 2144304 S 519.698 2,664,002
21.413,134 413.907 21.4.3.134 413907
75 111.848 1.257.323 . 76.369.171
95.669.376 2,180,928 21413134 79,447,170
8,500,803 19,831,335 28,422,138
{1,.894.971) 1573.611) 2,468.582)
6,695,832 19.257.724 25.953.556
3.012 732 121,388 3,134,120
{1.807.778) 171 749) (1.979,527)
1,104,954 49,639 1.154.593
11,822 42} 621,680 12 444 101
10,267 669) {445,058) 19.712.727)
2,554.752 176,622 2.731L.374
894.574 1.363.343 2.257.917
(246.080) (148.478) (394.558)
648 494 1.214.665 1.863.359
2.794 23] 85455 2.889.686
(2,108 744 211.913) {2,.320.657)
685 4R7 1i16.45R) 569,029
176,814 . 176.814
{32,907) 15.804) (35,801
143.007 {5.894) 138.0i3
27.281.575 22.033.201] 49,324,776
{15.458.148) (1.456.703) 116.914.852)
11.833.426 20.576.498 32.409.924

22767426 8§ 21413134 S 111.B57.095

Balance Balance
July 1 2010 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2011
5 12,500 S 5 12,500
12.500 12.500
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7. Capilal Assets (continued)

112l Asset reciat
waler Svsiem 11.523.899 2G2.538 11.766.437
waier and waste Water Equipment 3.033.354 304.877 3.338.231
wasie ‘waler System 16.556.098 449.19] 17.005.289
wasie Waler Treatmen! Plan! 31,390,555 19,933 31.410.488
Total Capial Assels, Deprecialed 652,503,906 1.036.539 - 63,540,445
Less: Accumulated Deprecianon (23,166 761 [1.557.750) . (24,724.511)
Net Total Capiial Assels, deprecialed 30,337 145 (521,211 38,815,934
Business-type Activiies, Capiral Asseis, Net 5 39.349.645 § (521,211) § - 5§ 38.828434

Depreciauon and Amoruzanon expense were charged 1o luncuons/programs of the ptimary governmeni as (ollows:

Governmenial acovities,

General Government Admirustration 5 96,349
Public Salety 388,399
Public Works 245,066
Parks. Recreation. and Culture 717.826
Community Development 8,163

§ 1.456.702

Busin -1y fivali

waler and Sewer 5 1.557 750

Amortizanon expense 10r bond :s5uance ¢osis i Ihe amount o1 $5.894 15 included in the total for Parks, Recreation, and

Culture.

8 Delerred Revenue

Deterred revenue represenls amounts for which asset recogriuon crteria have been me! buat (or which revenue recognition

critena have not been met
consisted ol e [ollowing

Grani revenue

o Long-Term Labihlies

Deferred revenue as reporied in the governmental fund financial statements al June 30, 201!

General
Fund
3 19.359

General obhgation noles are direct obligauons and pledge the full faith and creds of the Town. The charter of the Town of
Chnstiansburg muits the legal debt 10 10% ©f the assessed vaiuatlon of real estale within the Town kmits The Town's legal
aebt margm at June 30C. 2011 is 8185.755.733 (see Schedule 6 o! Stausucal Secton).

The following 1s a summary of exisung long-ierm habitites and the changes in those llabiimes dunng the vear.

Balance Balance
Governmental ACtvilies July 1, 2010 Additions Reducuons _ June 30, 2011
Genera! Obligation Dept:
2007 Revenue Bond S 1,845,000 S - $ 65000 s 1.780,000
2004B Revenue Bongd 10.080.000 240,000 9,840,000
1985 General Obiliganon Nole 1,24.0,000 225.000 1.015.000
Tolal General Cbhigalnon Debt 13.165.000 530.000 12.635.000
Compensaled Absences Payable from ihe
General Fund 485 043 81.709 56G6.752
Landilll Closure & Posticiosure Care Cos! 152,092 0.509 142583
Bond Premiums 68,832 4 049 64,7683
Merilssick pay (OPEB) payable 145.000 15.218 160,218
Toral Governmental Activites, iong-ierm debt. § 14,015,967 S 06.927 S 543,558 % 13,569,336
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9. Long-Term Lrablmes (continued)

Balance Balance

Business-iype Aclivities July i 2010 Additions Reductons _ June 30, 201

2001 VA Revolving Loan Fund 5 6,592,316 5 - 8 500,630 5 6.091486

'998 VA Revolving Loan Fund 1.423.123 . 155 617 1.267.206

Totwal 8.015 439 . 556,747 7.358.692
Compensaled Absences Payable from the

waler and Sewer Fund 90.000 11.728 o 101,728

Total Business-Type Activiies, long-term dept, § 8,105,438 S 11,728 & 656.747 5 7.460.4320

L.ong-term Liatilimes of the Town at June 30, 2011 are compnsed of the foliowing issues:

§11,185.000 revenue bond Issued December 15, 2004, mamunng annually with principal and
inleres! payabie semi-annually through Augus! 1, 2034; mieres! rale vanes, currently at 3.25% . 5 9.5840.000

$1.970.000 revenue bond issued July 30, 2007 marunng annually with principal ang mierest

payabie semi-annuatlly through Augusi 1, 2027: inleres rale varies cuarrently al 4.30% 1,780,000
$3.500.000 public /mprovement bonds issued December 1, 1993, matunng annually with

interest payable semi-annually through February 1, 2015: initerest rale vanes, currenily al 1.015.000
4 875% .

$2.800.000 (1898) VA Revelving Loan Fund. The Loan was refinanced on June |, 2006 at
3.70% . wilh semi-annual paymenis of principal and interest in the amoun! of $103.572 on June !

and December | Final paymen is due June I, 2018, 1.267.206
$10,311.000 (2001 VA Revolving L.oan Fund, The Loan will be inanced over 20 vears al 3.50%
wilh semi-annual payments of pnnapal and interest in the amount ol $367.010 on Seplember | 6 0Q] 486
and March |
Tolal General Obliganons and VA Revolving Loans T 10.993 602
Compensaled Absences Payable 668.480
Landfill Closure and Posiclosure Care Cost Payvable 42,583
Bond Premiums 64,783
Service Mernl (QOPEBR; payable 160,218
Total Pnmary Government, long-temn liabilues s 21020756

The annual requirements to amoruze governmen!al activities debi cutsianding as of June 30 2011 are as {ollows:

Fiscal 2007 Revenue Bond 2004 Revenue Bong 1985 Gensral Oblganen Totat
Year Princisal Inrerest Princinal Inlerest Principai Lerest rincida Lierest
2012 70.000 86,325 245,000 424,100 235000 50.750 550.000 561,175
2013 75.000 83.063 255.000 414 100 245,000 39 000 575.000 536.163
2014 75.000 79 658 265,000 403 700 260.000 26.750 GO0.000 510,138
2015 B0.000 76.000 275.000 392.800 7T5.000 13.750 630.000 482,650
2016 85,000 71.875 285.000 381.700 - a 370.000 453,575
2017 90,000 67.500 295.000 370.100 . . 385,000 437,600
2018 90,000 63.000 310,000 358.000 . o 400.000 42].000
2019 95.000 57,375 320.000 345,400 0 o 415.000 402,775
2020 100,000 53.500 335.000 332.300 o - 435.000 385.800
202! 105,000 48,375 345.000 318.528 - - 450,000 366,903
202226 620.000 154,250 1.970.000 1.355.641 - - 2.590.000 1.510.09)
2027-31 295.000 14.875 2,485,000 737.875 . - 2 780.000 752,750
2032-34 . 2,455,000 368.862 - = 2.455.000 368862
Tolal $ 1L.7B0.00Q & 855626 § 9840000 § 6.203406 5 1015000 & 130,250 5 12635000 3  7.180482
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g Long-Term Liabilnes contmued)

The following general obligation debt and VA revolving lcans are :ssued 10 support business-tvpe activings. The annua!
requrements o amorhze husiness-lype activines debt outsianding as of June 30, 2011 are as 'ollows:

Fiscal 2001 VA Revohving Loan 1998 VA Revolving Loan Total

Year Principal Inleresi Principal nlerest Prncipal Inierest
2012 318.512 208,704 161.740 45,404 680.252 254,108
2013 536,819 190,398 167.780 39.364 704,599 229,762
2004 555,772 171,445 174,045 33,009 729817 204 544
205 575385 151,823 180,544 26,600 755.929 178,423
2018 595 709 131.507 187,286 18,858 782.993 151,365
2017 616.742 110,475 194 279 12,865 811.02] 123,340
20.8 838.516 88,700 201,532 5.610 840.048 94 310
2019 661,060 66,156 o o 661,060 66,156
2020 684.399 42,817 - . 584,399 42.817
202] 708.562 18,654 - - 708,562 18.654
Toral 3 6091486 S5 1180678 § 1267206 5 182.800 & 7.358.692 § 3563479

The allocanon of iong-lerm debt o the General Fund or the water and Sewer Fund is determimed based on the Town's
anention lor repayment of the debt A surnmary of the allocation of debt 1ssued 15 as follows:

water & sewer General

Fund Fund Total

Bonds:
1995 Public Improvement Bonds 5 « 5§ 1015000 S 1015000
20048 Revenue o 9.540.000 9.840.000
2007 Revenue - 1.780.000 1.780.000

Loans:
2001 VA Revolving Loan 6.091.486 - 6,091,486
1998 VA Revolving Loan 1,267,206 . 1,267,206
Landiill Closure & Pesiciosure Care Cosi - 142,563 142,583
Compensaled Absences 10],728 566,752 668,480
Bond Premiums o 64,783 64,783
Senvice Metit (OPEB) payable - 160.218 160.218
Total s T 460420 3 135609336 S 21.029.756

2 Fund Balances

Deltails of fund balance classiicatons displayed in the aggregate are as follows

Special
General Revenue Cemetery
Funag Fund Fund Tolals

Nonspendable

Perpetual Care S o -3 a S 358214 § 356,214
Restricied for; -

[.aw Enlorcement S 42,160 a 42,160

Fire Depanment 429 088 329.647 . 758,735

Lilesaving-Rescue Sgquad 3 579.933 2 579.933

Building and Grounds . 90,538 - 099,538

Parks and Recreanon - Knowles Estale . 675 056 o 075,056
Comnminied
Assigned.

Fuire and Lifesaving 2 090.67; o 5 2.080,67]

General Adminsiranon 108.324 . o 108 324
Lnassigned 12.816,580 5 . 12,816,580

Total tund balances at lune 30 201 5 154453663 & 2026334 S 350,214 5 17 831.211

31



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBLIRG
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1. Defined Beneiit Pension Plan

A

Plan Descriphion

Name of Plan: Virginia Renrement Sysiem (VRS)
Identhicaton of Plan: Agent and Cast-sharing Multiple-Employer Delined Benefit
Administening Agent virginia Retirement System (System)

All [ull-ime, salaned permanent employees of paricipaing employers are automancally covered by VRS upon empioymeni
Benelils vesr afier five years of service credil Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed
and thewr employer s paying inio (he VRS, Members are eligible to purchase prior public service. active duty mibiary service.
cerain penods of leave and previously refunded VRS senice as credit in thew plan.

VRS admimsiers two aefined peneflit plans {or local government employees - Plan @ and Plan 2-

Membpers hired before July 1. 2010 and who have service credis belore tuly ), 2010 are covered under Plan | Non-
hazardous duty members are eliglble 1or an unreduced relirement benent ceginnng al age 65 weh at leasl ive years of
service credil or age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit, They may retire with a reduced benelit early age 55 with
at least 10 years of service credit or age 50 wilh al leas! five vears of service credit

Members hired or rehired on or afier July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before July [ 2010 are covered under
Plan 2 Non-hazardous duty members are elgible for an unreduced benelil beginming at their normal Social Security
retirement age wih at least frive years ol service credit or when the sum of 1heir age ana senvice equals 90. They may
reure with a reduced benelit as early as age 60 wilh al least live years ol service credil.

Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible lor an unreduced beneill beginning at age 60 with al
least 5 years ol senace credit or 2ge 50 wiith a! least 25 years of senvice credit. These members include, sherllfs, depury
snetifl[s and hazardous dury emplovees of polncal subdivisions that have elecied lo provide enhanced coverage for
nazardous duty service. They may retire wiih a reduced benefil as early as age 30 with ar ieast [ive vears of service credi
All other provisions of the member's plan apply

The VRS Basic 3enefit 13 a lfetime monihly benelil based on a renrement multiplier as a percentage of the member's average
final compensation muinphed by the members total service credit. Under Plan |, average [inal compensaton 1s the average
of ine members 36 consecultve months of highest compensanon. Under Plan 2. average final compensation is the average
ol the members 60 consecutive rmonths of highes! compensation. The reurement multiplier lor non-hazardous duty
members 15 1.70% Al retirement, members can elect the Basic Benefu, the Survivor Option a Parual Lump Sum Oplion
Paymen! {(PLOP) or 1he Advance Pension Opnon. A reurement reduchon faclor is apphed 10 the Basic Bene!ill amount for
members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance Pension Option of those reunng with a reduced benelil

Renrees are eligible for an annual cost-ol-ving adusiment (COLA) effective July | ol the second calendar year of retirement
under Plan i, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00% : under Plan 2. the COLA canno! exceed 6.00% Dunng vears of no inflation or
deflanon. the COLA 15 0.00% The VRS also provides death and disahility benefits. Tile 511 of the Code of Virginia (1950 as
amended. assigns he authorty 1o establish and amend bene!t provisions (o the General Assembly ol Virginia

The Sysilem issues a pdbhcly available comprenensive annual financial reporl that includes financial stalemenis and required
supplementary  informaton  for VRS, A copy ol that report may be downloaded from their web sile at

nitpAawww varere org/Pdl/Punhicalions/2010-AnnyalReporn pgl or oblained by wnting 10 the Sysiem at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, VA 232152500

Funding Policy

Plan mempers are required by Titie 51.1 of the Code ol Mrging (1950), as amended. 10 confribule 5 00% ol their compensaton
1oward their rerement The Town ol Chnsiiansburg has assumed this 5.00% member contnbution. In addinon, the Town 1§
required 10 contribule (e remaiming amounis necessary 1o [und its parmcipanon in the VRS using the actuanal basis specited
oy the Code gl vizdinie and approved Dy the VRS Board of Trusiees The Town's contribunon rate lor the liscal year ended
2011 was 15.20% of annual covered payvroll. The Town's contribunon rate includes the employee's share of 3.00% paid Dy the
employer

Aannual Pension Cosl
For liscal year 2011, ihe Town's annual pension cosi of 51,380,055 was equal 1o their requrred and aciual contribuhons

Three Year Trend Inflormalion

Anrugl Percentage

Pension of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cosl (APC) Conirtbuied Obligalon
June 30 2009 $ 1,102,950 100.00% S .
June 30, 2010 $ 1380955 100.00% S
June 30, 2011 5 1,430,452 100.00% S
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The liscal year 2011 reqguired contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2000 actuanal valuauon using he entry age
actuanal cost method. The actluarial assumplons at June 30, 2009 mcluged (@ an invesiment rale of rewurn (ner of
adminisiratve expenses) of 7 50%. (D) projecied salary increases ranging from 3.75% 10 560% per year [or general
govermnment employees and 3.50% o 4 75% lor emplovees ehgibie for enhanced benefits available 10 law enforcement
olficers, firefighiers. and shenlfs, and (¢) a cost-ol-lving adjusiment of 2.50% per year Both the nvesiment rate of relurmn ana
the projecied salary increases include an infllanon component of 2.50% The actuanal value of the Town of Chrsuansburg's
assels .5 equal 1o the modilied market value of assets. This method uses 1echriques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatiity in the market value ol assets over a hve-yvear penod. The Authority's unfunded aciuanal accrued habilty 1s bemng
amomzed as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The rermaimng amornzahon penod at June 34, 2008

C Annual Pension Cost (continued)
for the Unfunded Actuanal Accrued Liability (UAAL) was 20 years.
D Funded S1aius and Funding Progress

ASs Of June 30, 2010, the mes! recent acluanal valdauon date, the plan was 62 77% (unded. The actuanal accrued hability [or
benells was 831621423, and ihe acluanal value of assels was 522,061,054, resulting in an unfunded aciuarial accrued
liabllity (UAAL) of $9.560.369. The covered payrell (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 93,513,961,
and ratio of the UAAL 10 the covered payroll was 100 49%

The schedule ol [unding progress, presented as Reguired Suppliementary [nformalion following the noles ta the inancial
slalements, presenis mullvear rend informanon abou: whether the acluanal value of plan assets is ncreasing or dacreasing
over ume resalive to the actaarial accrued habillty (AAL) 1or benelts.

.2 Sick Leave Divesinure Plan (Defined Benent Pengsion Plan

A Pian Descnpuon

Name of Plan: Sick Leave Dwvesiilure Plan

Idenulication of Plan: Single Empioyer

Administering Agent Town ol Chrisiansburg

Sick-Leave Divestiture at retirement. Employees retiring in accordance wilth VRS gudelnes and who have at ieast ive (3)

years of service with the Town of Chnsuansburg are eligible 10 take payment of accrued sick leave payabie diwectly (o them

with Ihe followmg oprions (dependent upon UImMe ol Service):

I Emplovees reunng that have a minimum of five (3) years of service may withdraw 25% 0f ther accrued sick leave up to a
maximum of $10.000 1axabie!

2. Employees hired on or belore June 30, 2011 who rehre immedialely upon separahon {from the Town with a minimum of
twenty (20) years ol service and who are relirng n accordance with VRS guidelines. may take their 10lal accrued sick
leave in 120 monthly paymenis (i.e: 10 vears). subed 1o applicable Federal and Stale taxes. The value ot the accrued sick
leave {or payou: will be catculaled a1 an hourly raie using the VRS average Final Compensalon compuianon if the renree
becomes deceased dunng lhe payou! pencd. the payouls cease and are nen-lransferable.

B Funding Paolicy
The plan s a pay-as-you-20 syslem. with the Town annually [unding and paying the benelits 1c the members.
C Annual Pension Cost

For niscal year 2011, the Town's annual pension cost [ar 1his plan was $86.246 which was 5§35.971 less than their requueed and
actual contribunons of $132.217
Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Parcentage

Fension of APC Nel Penston
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC} Contribuiad Oohgabon
June 30, 2009 & 131,762 32.31% 5 806 196
June 30, 2010 s 131.762 S076% S 154 076
June 30, 2011 S 138.219 69.63% 5 132,217

The liscal year 2011 required contribution was deterrmined as pari ol the June 30, 201] actuanal valuation Jsing the umt crecit
cos1t method. The acluanal assumptions al June 30, 2011 inciuded (a) an invesimens rale of relurn tnel ol agminisirative
expenses) of 4 00% . (b) projecied salary increases ranging from 3.50% per vear for general government ernpioyvees and
3.50% [or empioyees eligibte lor enhanced benelis available 10 law enflorcement ollicers, [zelightars. and sheriffs, and () a
cosi-oi-living adjusiment of 2.50% per year. Both the invesiment rate of return ana the projecied salary increases include an
inflatlon component of 2.50%. The remalrng amorhizaton perod at June 30, 20}) for the Unfunded Actuanal Accrued
Liability (UAAL) was 29 years.
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5 Funded Siatus and Funding Progress

As ol June 30, 2011, The maosl recent actuanal valuanon date. the plan was unlunded The actuanal accrued liapility for
benefls was 51 408,425 and the aciuanal value ol assets was 50 resultmg in an unfunded acluarial accrued hatality (UAAL)
of $1,498,425 The covered payroll (annual payroll ol achive employees covered by the plan) was $9,513,961, and the rauo of
the UAAL 10 the covered payroll was 15 74% .

13. Risk Management

The Town is exposed 1o vanous risks of ioss relaied 1o the [ollow!ng: torts, theft of. damage to, and desiruchon of asseis.
errors and omissions. injuries o employees: and natural disasters. The Town risk managemen! programs are as [oliows:

Workers' Compensauon - Workers' compensaton ansurance s provided through the Virginia Municipal Sell Insurance
Association, Dunng 2010-2011, oial premiums paid were $873,2586. Benelils are those afforded throughn the State of Virginia
as outlned in the Code of Vrdmia Section 65.2-100; premiums are based on covered payroll. 10b rales and claims fusiary.

General Liability and Other - The Town has general hability, automobile hability. property. and pubhc olficials habllity nsurance
through the Virginia Mumicipal Lsability Pool  Boiler and machinery coverage and property insurance are covered as per
sialement of values. Total premiums lor 2010-2011 were $3498.830.

Heaithcare - The Town prowvides health insurance coverage for employees :hrough commercial insurance polcies
Empiloyees' spouses and ciependen:s may also be covered provided they pay {or part of the premium cosit  Dunng (he year,
the Town paid §1.310.039 In healihcare premiums.

Other - There were no significant reducnons in insurance coverage [rom the prior year and no setilements thal exceeded the
amount of insurance coverage dunng the last three hscal years.

All Town employees are covered by a blanket bond in the armount ol $10.000. Adduonally, the Treasurer ana Town
Manager are covered by surety bonds In the amount of $100,000 each. The surety 1s Untied Stales Fidehty and Guaranty.

Inlergovernmental dependency - The 1own depends on financial resources {lowing from. or associaiea with, both the federal
government and the Siale of Virginia. Because of this dependency. 1he Town is sublect 10 changes in specilic flows of
nitergovernmenlal revenues based on modifications 10 federal and siaie laws and {ederal and siale appropriations It is also
subject 10 changes i investmen! earnings and assel values associaled with U.S. Treasury securlties because of actans by
foreign governmenis and other holders of publicly held U.S Treasury secuntes

During 1he fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Town received direct (unding from the [ederal and siale government as

Law Enlorcement lunds 431,728
Sireel Maintenance Funds 2.833.444
Sales Tax 1.547.345
Non Calegorical State Aid 1,324,045
Federal and Siiaie Grants 111,261

6,247,823

j4  Blacksburg-Chrisuansburg-VPl water Authonty

The Blacksburg-Chusuansburg-VPI Waler Authority 1s a public body of poliic and corporale of the Commenwealth of Virginia.
created pursuanl 10 1he Virginila waler and Sewer Autharilies ACt 10 acquire, Construct, reconstruct, improve, extend. make
additions 10, operdte. and maintain a water supply sysiem for the Town of Blacksburg, virglnia the Town of Chnstiansburg,
virginia, and virginia Polytechnic insutute and Siate University Each of the three localiies appaints one member of the Board
of Direclors and two addiional ar-large members are appoinied Dy jomnt resoluton by the three lecalines. The Town has an all-
requiremeanis contract with the Audthority for its bulk waler purchases.

The Authority is not a pan ol ihe Town enllly and the Town assumes no [inancial responsibllity what-so-ever lor the Authority.
Accordingly, the [inancial positon and results of operanons of tne Authornty are nol included in the accompanying linancial
stalements

153 Contributed Capital

The conirtbuted capial account of the Enterprnise Fund increased from SI8 482,538 to $18.535.238 in 20102011 due 10
connbuted capiial - grants i aid ol construcion of $52.70C

The contributed capital account of the General Fund on the Sialement of Activities tor GASB Statement No. 34 purposes
ncludes the roads given 1o 1he Town by developers lor the Town 10 maintain  The value of $1,257.323 was arnved at using
3100 per Inot ot center lane miles  Total miles given 1o the Town dunng the liscal year amount 10 2.38!3. These new road
addinons are included on the Sialement o Nel Assels as a Capital Assel.
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16 Landtll Closure and Posiclosure Care Cesis

In FY 1098, the Town adopled GASB Staiement No. 18, Accourning for Municipal Sohd Wasie Landfill Closure and Posiclosure
Care Costs  Stale and federal laws and regulations require the Town [0 Dlace a inal cover on 1its 1andflll site as well as other
sites opened in the luture when they s1op accepung waste, and 10 perlorm ceriain mantenance and monitonng funcuons at
the sites {or thirty vears afler closure. Although ciosure and posiciosure care cast will be paid only near or afier the dare that
the landlill st1ops acceping wasle, GASB No. I§ requires that the Town record a poruon of these closure and posiclosure
care cosis as a long-lerm liability in each penod based on landfil capacity used as of each balance sheet dale. The §142 583
labilty for landiill closure and posiclosure care cost al June 30, 2011 represents the esiimated hability based on the usage of
100% of Ihe eslimated capacity of the landlill. The Town will recogruize the remaining esiimaled cost ol closure and
posiclosure care as costs are ncurred.

The lYiability accrued at June 30, 2041 15 based on wharl It would cosl 10 perform all ciosure and posiciosure care in 2011
Actual cost may differ {rorn his estmale due 10 inflation, changes in iechnology or changes in regulation.

17. Posiemploymenit Benefits other than Pension Benelits

In the fiscal year 2009, the Town adopied GASB Silalemen: No. 45, Accounhing and Finanaal Rzporiing by Employers jor
Posternployment Benefils Other Than Pensions The slatement was 1ssued to provide more complete, yeliable. and decision-
useful financial reporting regarding the cosis and [(inancial oblgatons thai governmenis incur when they previde
posiemplovmenl benefits other than pensions as part of the compensauon [or services rendered by therr employees. The
statement will provide better information 10 users about the government's unfunded actuaral accrued habilines (the difference
oelween the Town's lolai obligalion for OPEB and any assels sel aside for inancing the benelils) and changes in the funded
status @f the benefns over uime, The liability i$ based on an actuanal valuauon perlormed by a third-party every two years
The toral unfunded accrued liability at June 30, 2011 1s 51.258.886 which 15 based on the June 30, 201! valuanon. The
governmeni-wide Iinanoial stalements reflect the porton of the hability. The Town's plan 1S a pay-2s-you go system. The
annual required contnbulion per the aciluarial valuaion 15 5138 732 During the hscal year the Town pai¢ out benelils of
$43.710 The Net Other Pos! Employment (OPEB) obligation at June 30. 20J) 15 $160.218 The 1own currenily iniends 1o
conunue 1o lund these benents annually as they become due or a Pay-as-you-go sysiem

The descriphon of the renrement service mernt plan/sick pay s as (ollows:

Town-Sponsorad Service Menl. An emplovee retiring under VRS and who has al Jeast 20 vears of service 10 the Town s
ekgible for payment of ien dollars (510) per month for each vear of service (as determined by Counci with each budgel year).
Upon Medicare elgbility, the emplovee's Town Sponsored Service Merit payment wirns 1© a [lar sio/month. These
naymenis are placed in1o the Retremeni Health Savings [or the employee's use 1oward medical expenses aher retirement.

. Employees retring thal have a mintmum of ive (5) years ol service may withdraw 25% of ther accrued sick leave up o a
maximum of 510,000 (1axable).

2 Employees hired on or before June 30, 2011, who renre immediately upon separation (rom the Town with a mirimum of
wenty (20) vears ol service and who are retiring in accordance with VRS guidelnes, may take ther owal acerued sick
leave 1n 120 monihly paymentis i.e . 10 years), subject 10 applcable Federal and Stale taxes. The vaiue of the accrued sick
leave lor payoul wil! be calculaled at an hourly rale using ine VRS Average Fial Compensation compuation. If the reuree
becomes deccased durnng the payou! penod, (he payouls cease and are non-ransferanle.

'S Special item

it was delermined inat assels held by the fire depariment in the amount of $329.647 and the rescue sguad n the ameount of
$579.833 were held under the Town's tax idennhcanon number and therefore, needed 10 be included n the assets of the
Town. The funds have been calegorized as special revenue with the balances resincted as 10 use due 10 donor resinctions
under the heading "special 1tem® on the Statement of Activiles at the governmentwios level of presentaiion and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance a! the fund level of presentaiion.

19 Contngency

In October 2002, the Town ol Chustiansburg received a toan/grant for $675,000 from the Virginia Deparnmen! of Housing and
Commurty Development [or the constructlion of low Income housing lor low income at nsk youlths The {aciily, Tekoa Boys
Home. was 1o be buill, run and mamiamed by Community Housing Pariners Inc. {CHP} The loan is secured by this faculity
and will be lorgiven al the end ol a 20 year lerm provided that the original purpose coninues 10 be metl  In the event 1nat
CHP defaulls on the terms of the grant/loan, the funds must be repaid 10 the Virginla Department of Housing and Community
Development and the Town is conungently liable [or that repayment  During 2010 1he home was converied (o other uses
and the Viginia Depariment of Housing and Communily Development has approved that change stating that st s a
reasonable replacement [or the onginally nlended use™.

19 Subsequent Events
in prepanng hese linancial siaiements. the Organization has evaluaied evenls and lransachons {or polenlial recogniton or

disclosure inrough November 18. 2011, the dale the financial slalemenis were available o be 1ssued. Management 1$ nol
aware ol any subsequen! evenls thal occurred or other maliers that should be disclosed.
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG CHEDULE ]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Permils,
Privilege Revenues

General Other Fees, and From Use

Property Local Regulalory Fines and of Money and
Fiscai Year Taxes Taxes Licenses Forteitures Property
2010-2011 $  3.006273 s 13.111,979 5 131,369 S 95.038 & 489,477
2009-2010 5 3,053.658 5 12,051,711 5 203,998 S 118,559 5 349,955
2008-2008 3 2,808687 5 12.382.884 S 137,796 S 86.924 S 562,416
2007-2008 S 2,775,831 5 11.666.242 5 191,857 S 95,025 S 1,203,765
2006-2007 $ 2.664.913 S 11,006,752 5 211,538 5 148,523 5 1.303.000
2005-20006 S 2.626.603 & 10,068,405 s 252.318 s 138,831 s 674.152
20042005 3 2,530.438 LS 8.824.010 5 250,188 3 87,4606 S 318,460
2003-2004 5 2403583 $ §,239.175 5 144,197 s 83,420 S 118.53]
2002-2003 s [.905,209 5 6.703.186 5 126.885 S 93.833 s 184,562
2001-2002 5 1,860.457 s 6.180.952 = 113,993 &) Q7,737 S 252,999

Charges

For Inter-

Fiscal Year Services Miscellaneous governmenial Tolal
2010-2011 S 2,207,153 S 257,939 s 3,797,190 5 23.006.418
2009-2010 S 1.397.405 5 227265 S 3,685,031 $ 21,087,582
2008-2009 S [,399.8095 S 1.088.110 s 3,749,731 5 22,336,443
2007-2008 3 1.214.173 5 714274 S 3.520.364 5 21,381,53!
2006-2007 5 1,192,332 ) 611.289 5 3.419.113 5 20,557,550
2005-2006 s 1,159,231 3 304,786 5 3,204,761 5 18,519,087
2004-2005 s 1,091,103 = 204,476 ] 3.057,190 $ 16.363.331
20032004 5 1,039,175 s 181,105 & 3.417.516 5 15,626,702
20022003 S 973.286 5 198.725 5 2,737,806 5 12,923,492
2001-2002 kS 826 676 5 186,389 5 2.678.679 5 12,195,882
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TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBLIRG

GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL. YEAR
General Pubhc Public Healih and
Fiscal Year Adminisiration Salety WOrks wellare
2010:2011 S 2.077.241 5 6.661.587 5 4.848.285 5 3.100
2008-2010 5 1.837.708 5 6.629.215 5 5.079.978 5 3.100
2008-2009 5 1.701.156 S 5 488,748 5 4 444 111 5 3.040
2007-2008 5 1.618,229 s 5.800.555 ] 4,630.843 ] 2.700
2006-2007 S 1,400,715 5 5.219.119 5 4237338 ] 2,760
2005-2006 5 1.262,538 s 4,988,285 S 4,204,419 s 2,500
2004-2005 s 1.204.434 S 4,498,932 = 4,033.452 5 2,500
2003-2004 S 1,084,717 5 4,145,907 5 3.652.370 5 2.400
20022003 5 1,005,050 S 3.810.956 3 3.325.153 5 2.400
20012002 E] 921,343 S 3.505.787 5 3.120.079 5 2.400
Parks
Recreanon
and Communiy Deby Capital
Fiscal Year Culiure Development Service outlay Tolal
2010-2011 S 3.286.646 5 1.132.826 S 1.113.981 5 1,369,232 5 20,482,898
2009-2010 5 2.305.876 5 1.374 850 ] 1,119,544 5 7,962,820 5 26,413,191
2008-2009 s 1.845.749 S 1.258.527 5 1,113.324 s 7,188,705 5 24,043,360
2007-2008 S 1.673,455 S 1.806.079 3 1,005.85] 5 B.288.726 S 25,035,438
2006-2007 S 1.750.808 = 1,516,400 s 958,129 5 3,124,325 5 18,209,692
2005-2006 ] 1,374,703 S B51.633 5 1L.0OOOQ,010 5 3.114,504 5 16.798,592
2004-2005 S 1,282,271 s 804,938 s 308.419 5 2.475,860 S 14,621,806
2003-2004 s 1.230.679 S 1.372.615 E 347.048 5 2.485.637 S 14,321,373
2002-2003 S 1,194,785 5 651.112 s 370.172 5 3.115,346 s 13,474,974
2001-2002 ] 1.168 378 s 647.517 ] 373.793 5 1,821,767 s 11,561,064
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

ASSESSED VALUE CF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Machinery
Real Personal and
Fiscal Year Eslale Properny Tools
2010-2011 5 [.839,744.614 5 157,249,218 s 60.573,302
2009-2010 5 [.915 422,886 & 143.884.570 s 62,321,082
2008-2009 s 1.863.401 200 5] 149,368,176 S 63.056.712
2007-2008 S 1,801.033,201 ] 141,571,808 S 65,343.649
2006-2007 S 1,357.821.197 5 129.825.097 3 64,568.849
2005-2006 S 1,298,699,328 ] 129,691,123 S 69.209.974
2004-2005 S 1.255.068,756 s 123,002,537 S 61 649 750
200732004 < 1210 RITGRG . © IR AR T ¢ % RNy
2002-2003 S 885,741,866 5 122,495,549 3 52,130,486
2001-2002 5 860.071045 & 122 988,578 & 54.706,793
Property Tax Rates - Lasi Ten Years
Machinery
Real Personal and
Fiscal Year Estale Property Tools
2010-2011 $ 1126 S 45 $ 45
2009-2010 S 11286 S 45 8 45
2008-2009 S 1126 S 45 S 45
2007-2008 s 1126 5 45 5 45
2006-2007 5 144 s 45 5 45
2005-2006 -5 144 5 45 S 45
2004-2005 5 J44 s 45 S 45
2003-2004 [ 144 s 45 5 43
2002-2003 $ 144 s 45 s 45
2001-2002 g d44 S 45 5 45



SCHEDULE 3

Public Uriiity
Mobile Homes Unegualized Equalized Total
S 4,792,800 s 44,162,714 ] 123,171 5 2,206,645.819
S 4,792,700 5 43.501.590 3 44276 5 2.170,067.104
5 4,579,840 S 40,896,193 5 46 137 S 2.121,348,258
5 4,607,360 S 40,715,462 5 42,329 S 2.053.,313,899
S 4,740,740 s 30,703,841 5 50,090 S 1.587,809,914
S 4,601,520 S 32,261,723 5 39,470 5 1.534,503,138
S 5.073.600 3 30,283,869 5 26,964 S [,L475.105,476
S 4,692,300 5 25,879,014 5 20779 s 1,432.967.523
5 G.032.441 S 25,893,804 5 20.362 5 1,092.314.508
s 6.204,399 S 25,863,804 S 19,862 5 1,069.854,48]
Public Utiiity
Maobile Homes Unequalized Equalzed
5 144 5 144 S 45
S 144 s 144 S 45
5 144 5 144 $ A5
5 J44 & 144 5 45
S A4 S d44 S 45
5 44 S Jd44 5 45
& d44 S 44 $ 45
$ 144 s d44 5 435
S d44 S 144 s 45
S 144 s 144 S 45
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percent Delinguent (2)
Fisca!l Total (1) Current Tax 1) ol Levy Tax
Year Tax Levy Collecuons Collected Coliections
2010-2011 5 3.171.455 3 3.156.,754 89.54% s 48,868
2008-2010 3 3.082,251 5 3.083.654 99.72% 5 168,857
2008-2000 ] 3.060.,904 S 3.050.8858 99.67% K] 48,033
2007-2008 8 2,965,908 5 2,928,389 98.73% 5 49,580
2006-2007 s 2,837,231 ] 2.836.463 99.97% s 29,276
2005-20006 S 2.771.986 5 2.812.849 101.47% S 55,744
2004-2005 5 2.680.188 ) 2.615.879 97.28% S 76.273
2003-2004 s 2.612,519 s 2.513.352 96.20% s 24,888
2002-2003 =3 2.069.972 5 2.025.298 97.84% 5 34.52!
2001-2002 S 2.035.330 3 1,982,519 97.40% S 25,5485
Percent of Percent of (1}
Total Tax Ouistanding (3) Delingquent
Fiscal Toial Tax Collecnons Delinquern Taxes 10
Year Collections lo Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2010-2011 S 3.205.,652 [0].08% 5 129.688 4.09%
2009-2010 5 3.252.511 105.18% 5 125.620 4.06%
2008-2008 3 3.008.921 101.24% L] [35,188 4.42%
2007-2008 s 28977979 100 41% ] 116,143 3.92%
2006:2007 S 2.865,739 101.00% & 109,736 3.87%
2005-2006 8 2.868.593 103.49% s [23,064 4.44%
2004-2005 8 2.692.252 100.11% s 159,908 5.95%
2003-2004 S 2.538,250 97.16% s 190,471 7.29%
2002.2003 5 2,059.819 99.51% 3 142,187 6.87%
2001-2002 S 2.008.068 98.66% S 145.073 7.13%
NOTE (1) Exclusive of penalnes and interest. Includes public service corporations

and personal property rermbursement from the Commonweallh.

This heading "Delinqueni Tax Collections' includes all delinguent tax
collections made within the fiscal vear indicated regardless of when the
levy occurred. Also. inciuded in towal 15 the amount of refunds paid
dunng the year.

This headmng. "Outstanding Delngquent Taxes". merely reports 1otal
outstanding dehnguent taxes as oi the liscal year end as one lump sum.
In subsequent fiscal years, these amounts are nol being reduced by
subseguent collections lor purposes of this scnedule  Only the
outstanding delinguent taxes resulting from the current fiscal year levies
plus 20 years delinquent real eslate taxes and 5 years delinquent
personal property taxes are being reported in the lump sum armouni.
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND

NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Less
Assessed Value Debt Debt
of All Taxabie Gross semvices Payable from

Fisca! Property Bonded Monies Enierprise

Year Population (1) (In Thousands) Debt Available Revenues
2010 2011 16,947 5 2.206.646 5 12.635.000 S S
2009 2010 16.947 s 2,170,087 s 13.165.000 5 5
2008-2009 16,947 5 2,121,348 5 13.680.000 3 5
2007-2008 16.947 $ 2.053.314 s 14,170,000 S 5
2006-2007 16.947 3 1.587.810 s 12,615,000 5 5
Eidlaetata™ol el ¢V iad e e Xt k) ¢ NclaMadialale! i ¢
2004 20085 15,947 5 1.475.105 5 13,400,000 E) 5
2003 2004 16.947 5 1 432.968 S 2.515.000 5 s 107,250
2002 2003 16,947 s 1,092 315 S 3.140.000 S 5 510,750
2001-2002 15,947 5 1.065.854 s 3.750.000 5 5 886,125
NOTE (1) Tayioe Murphy Instituie at the Universiy of Virginia

1994-09 data 1s from the Town Planning Department

2000-2010 data 1s [rom 2000 Census



Ratic of
Net Bonded Net Bonded
Netl Bonded Debt 1o Assessed Debt per
Debi Vvalue Capita
S 12,635,000 0057k 5 745 56
5 13.165 000 ooenrr s 776 B3
3 13.680 000 00G64:1 5 807 22
K] 14,170,000 00691 8§ 836 14
5 12.615.000 00791 S 744 38
$ 13.015.000 .0085:1 5 767.98
% 13.400,000 .00g11 s 790 70
$ 2.407.750 0o17.1 s 142.08
s 2 629,250 0024:1 S 15515
S 2.863.875 o027 & 168.99

a
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TOWN OFF CHRISTIANSBURG SCHEDULE G

STATEMENT OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Legal Debt Limat:

10% of assessed value of taxable real estate (1)

51,883,907, 328 S 198.390.733
Deduct:
Bonds pavable 12,635,000
L.egal margin for creation of additional debt 5 185,755,733
NOTE: (I} Includes assessed value of Public Service Corporation Real Estate.
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Michael B. Cooke, C.PA., PC.

Certified Public Accountants

& Colony Park

2001 South Main Street
Blackshurg, Virginia 24060
{(5-HO)) 953-1152

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of Town Council
Town of Christansburg, Virginia

Wwe have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Christiansburg,
Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise
the Town of Christiansburg's basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated November 18, 201l. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Compitroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Christiansburgs
internal control over financial reporting as a basis ior designing our audiing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town
of Christiansburg's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Christiansburg’s internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, (o prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a
imely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of
Christiansburg's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements. noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reporied under Government Auditing Standards.

43



This report is intended sclely for the information and use of the Town Council,
management, and siate and federal awarding adencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other ihan these
specified parties.

Mokl B. Cook.. cPA PC

November 18, 201!
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Michael B. Cooke, C.PA., PC.

Certified Public Accountants

G Colony Park

2001 South Main Street
Blacksburg, Virginia 24060
(540) 953-1152

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF LAWS, REGULATIONS, CONTRACTS, AND GRANTS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Christiansburg, Virginia:

we have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the Town of
Christiansburg, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20li, and have
1ssued our report thereon dated November 18, 2011.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Specifications for Audits of
Counties, Cities, and Towns issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

AS part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of
Christiansburg's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we also
performed tesis of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants related to the following state compliance maiters:

State Compliance Matters:

Code of virginia:
Budget and Appropriation Laws
Cash and Investment Laws
Conflicts of Interest AcCts
Local Retirement System
Procurement Laws
Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act

State Agency Requirements:
Highway Maintenance Funds

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, applicable to the Town of
Christiansburg, Virginia, is the responsibility of the Town's management. Providing
an opinion on such provisions was not an objective of our audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests relating to the above mentioned state compliance matters
disclosed the following instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported:

All locally appointed officials must file an annual disclosure form (Section 2.2-
3115 of the Code of Virdinia) with the clerk of the governing body by January 15"
each year. All required disclosure forms were not received by the clerk as of
this due dalte.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of Town Council,
management, and state and federal awarding agencies and pass-tirough entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Mihil B. Looke, A, PC

November 18, 2011
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